
 WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP  
COMMITTEE MEETING 

        March 21, 2023 
7:00 PM Regular Meeting, Courtroom 

 

1. Call Regular Meeting to Order  

2. Requirements of the Sunshine Law (This meeting was advertised in the Burlington County 
Times on January 6, 2023 and electronic notice was given pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:39-1.5).  

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Moment of Silence  

5. Roll Call 

6. Approval of Minutes 

a. March 7, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 

b. March 7, 2023 Executive Session Minutes 

7. Open Meeting to Public Comment on Agenda Items Only – Please remember to state your 
name and address for the record.  

8. Monthly Reports 
a. Construction 
b. Police 
c. Public Works 
d. Tax Collector 

 
9. ORDINANCES: 

 First Reading  
a. 4-2023 Calendar Year 2023 Ordinance to Exceed the Municipal Budget Appropriation 

Limits and to Establish a CAP Bank (N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-45.14) 
 

 Second Reading – Open Public Comment 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE: The public hearing for Ordinance 1-2023 Amending the 
Township Zoning Ordinance will occur on April 4, 2023.  Prior to adoption of Ordinance 1-
2023, the Land Development Board must determine whether the proposed Amendment to 
the Zoning Ordinance is Consistent with the Master Plan.  It is anticipated that the Land 
Development Board will undertake this review at a special meeting to be held on March 27, 
2023. 

 
a. 2-2023 An Ordinance of the Township of Westampton Amending Chapter 232 Entitled 

Handicapped Parking 
b. 3-2023 An Ordinance of the Township of Westampton Amending Chapter 203 Entitled 

Solicitors and Canvassers 
 



10. RESOLUTIONS:  
a. 46-23 Payment of Vouchers – this resolution approves the payment of bills through 

03/21/2023 
b. 47-23 Resolution Authorizing Compliance with the Equal Opportunity Commission 

Requirements 
c. 48-23 Resolution to Utilize Average Tax Collection Rate for Calculation of Reserve for 

Uncollected Taxes Appropriation in the 2023 Municipal Budget  
d. 49-23 Resolution Authorizing the 2023 Municipal Budget to be Read by Title Only 
e. 50-23 Resolution to Introduce the 2023 Municipal Budget 
f. 51-23 Resolution Approving Appropriation Reserve Transfers 
g. 52-23 Resolution Requesting a 2-Month Extension of Time for Award of Construction 

Project 
 

11. Open Meeting for Public Comment - Please remember to state your name and  
                        address for the record. 
 

12. Dates to Remember: Next Township Committee Meeting April 4th @ 7PM, Land 
Development Board Meeting April 5th @ 7PM, Historic Commission April 26th @ 7PM, 
Recreation Committee Meeting April 12th @ 7 PM, Easter Egg Hunt April 1st, with a rain 
date of April 8th starting at 9AM, Mock Crash at BCIT May 12th @ 9:30am. 

13.  Committee Liaison Reports/Comments  

14.  Executive Session 

a. Resolution No. 03.21.2023 - Resolution Authorizing the Township Committee and 
Support Staff to Meet in Private Session and Authorizing the Exclusion of the Public 
From that Portion of the Meeting Dealing with Specific Issues Requiring Non-Public 
Discussions: Attorney-Client Privilege – Personnel and Potential Litigation. 

15.  Adjournment  
 
Please note: 
During the first public comment period, any resident or taxpayer of Westampton is welcome to 
comment on any governmental item of concern limited to the ordinances and resolutions being 
considered this evening. The second public comment period is open to any item of concern. A total 
of thirty (30) minutes has been allocated for each of the public comment periods. This time may be 
extended by the Committee.  

If you wish to be heard, come to the podium and give your name and address to the Clerk for the 
record. The amount of discussion of any single speaker will be limited to three (3) minutes. Large 
groups are urged to select someone to represent them. No speaker shall engage in any personally 
offensive, derogatory or abusive remarks. The Mayor shall immediately call to order any speaker 
who violates this provision. An officer of the WTPD may remove any disruptive person at the 
Mayor’s discretion.   

Public Comment is an opportunity for the public to present their views—both positive and negative. 
It is not a question-and-answer period. Neither the Mayor nor Committee Members will engage 
in a back-and-forth exchange so speakers are encouraged to present all their views. The Mayor as 
well as any Committee Member may respond to any comment after such speaker is finished. The 



Mayor may refer the speaker to the Township Administrator, Department Head or any Committee 
Member to respond in writing. 



Township of Westampton 

March 02, 2023  2:20:16PM

710 RANCOCAS ROAD

WESTAMPTON, NJ 08060

609-2671891 

OFFICE OF CONSTRUCTION OFFICIAL

Construction Permit Activity Report

RANGE:  02/01/2023  To  02/28/2023

$1,321,766.00

 192803

 22945

$1,186,094.00

0

0

26

39

$28,840.00

$6,842.00

$6,287.00

$16,360.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$28,840.00

$6,842.00

$6,287.00

$16,360.00

$0.00

$58,329.00

$715.00

$3,227.00

$1,300.00

$1,300.00

$0.00

$715.00

$2,511.00

$3,227.00

$0.00 $0.00$0.00

22

39

52

3

$0.00

$0.00

 0

 31

 4

$0.00

$2,507,860.00

Cu.ft

Sq.ft

$2,511.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$58,329.00

$3,227.00

$1,300.00

$62,856.00

$0.00

$600.00

$63,456.00

SUMMARY

CONSTRUCTION COSTS COUNT

Cost Of Construction: Cubic Footage: Permit Issued:

Cost Of Alteration: Square Footage: Updates Issued:

Cost Of Demolition: All Fees Waived:

Total Cost: Municipal Fees Waived:

PERMIT FEES

Building:

Electrical:

Building:

Electrical:

Building:

Electrical:

Fire :Fire : Fire :

Plumbing:

Elevator:

Mechanical:

Plumbing: Plumbing:

Elevator: Elevator:

Mechanical: Mechanical:

ADMIN FEES WAIVED FEES TOTAL FEES

 Building Fees:

Electrical Fees:

Fire Fees:

Plumbing Fees:

Elevator Fees:

Mechanical Fees:

* Total Waived: Technical Fees:

DCA Calculated Fees Waived Fees Collected Fees

Volume Training Fee:

Alteration TrainingFee:

Sub total Training Fee:

TECHNICAL ISSUES

Building Technical:

Electrical Technical:

Fire Protection Technical:

Plumbing Technical:

Elevator Technical:

Mechanical Technical:

Certificate of Occupancy Fee:

Waived Certificate Fees:

Sub Total Certificate Fees:

PERMIT FEES:

FEES:

CERTIFICATE FEES:

NET TOTAL FEES:

PENALTIES COLLECTED:

CCO FEES:

OTHER FEES:

GRAND TOTAL FEES:

CERTIFICATE ISSUES

Certificate of Occupancy:

Certificate of Approval:

Certificate of Continued Occupancy:

$0.00MIN FEES:

$1.00 $0.00 $1.00DCA Minimum Fee:

* By State law (see N.J.S. 52:27D-126c):

$0.00 

$0.00 

* By Municipality (see N.J.S. 52:27D-126b):

Report Run For Township of Westampton

























































 

February 1, 2023 

To: Mayor & Committee 

From: Christian Taylor, Director of Public Works 

Subject: February 2023 Department Report 

Roads 

Brush:  Brush collection took place this month, 13.63 tons of brush were picked up. It 

took DPW 5 days to complete the rotation.  Brush pickup takes place monthly and 

normally starts on the First full week of the month.     

Street Repairs:  DPW moved through the town efficiently and wrapped up storm drain 

cleanouts through the town. Once storm drains wrapped up, DPW converted the 

sweeper to its next job, sweeping the streets. The first round of sweeping has started. In 

Addition to Storm drain maintenance DPW put in 5 days clearing the one main outflows  

coming out of Tarnsfield development.  Two of the ditches( the section between hide 

and Thames and the section from the swim club to Rancocas Rd), have never received 

any maintenance. The deadfalls and trash were removed to facilitate easier conveyance 

of stormwater to the Rancocas.    

We have a received a quote from the engineer for repair of the storm drain on 

Tuliptree and Dogwood Drives was submitted for review for 2023 budget.  

 Pothole season has been busy.   DPW has been moving through the town on a 

rotational basis when the weather is right to take care of  the holes.  The mild rainy 

winter has caused bigger issues than a normal cold season due to the constant ebb and 

flow of the temperatures.  DPW has completed 2 full rotations through the town. DPW 

spread 16.57 tons of cold patch during the 2 rotations that took place in January and 

February. If you see a pothole, please report it to us so it can get filled.  You can do so by 

calling the main number and reporting it or emailing me directly through the Township 

website.     

Some exciting news concerning the new computer program!  We will be moving 

forward with the new system for reporting of resident concerns and departmental 



workflow.  We have selected a software company call Govpilot.  The agreement will was 

signed in January. Rollout of the new system will take place in early spring.  We will be 

keeping the residents informed of the progress of this and how to use it.  The software 

will provide a mobile app. for residents to report concerns and issues within the town. 

There will also be a link provided on the township website for reporting concerns, and 

residents will be able to call in to report issues.   

Recycling:  A normal flow of requests for new cans and lid repairs continue. We have 

new cans in stock, THE COST IS $60 AND MUST BE PAID AT THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

BEFORE DELIVERY. We are fine with lid replacements and will continue to service those 

requests in a timely fashion.  

Leaf Collection:  Leaf collection will pick back up in April. We normally do 2 rotations 

through the town. Please do not place leaves curbside till April 1 due to DEP 

stormwater regulations.  

Grass: Preparation for grass has started and the equipment is being gone over and 

serviced for the upcoming year.    

Snow:   Old man winter has taken a one-way flight to Florida this winter, unfortunately 

for the snow lovers. If he books a return flight, I will let everyone know. 

Facilities 

Municipal Building:  N\A  

Sports complex\Parks: DPW repaired a leaking toilet in preparation for the upcoming 

season. 

 Spring Meadows:   The Township has awarded the contract for replacement of the play 

structure at the park. The contractor has gotten back to us, and the start date will be 

sometime in early spring. The remaining repairs related to the tennis court are still in 

the works we are just working to fit the repairs into the schedule.  

Rolling Hills: N/A 

Tarnsfield Park: N/A        

DPW Building: N/A 

Rec. Center: Mid February DPW spent a little over 2 weeks doing some needed repairs 

in this building. The interior of the building had a bunch of drywall repairs done, painting 

of the both event rooms and the lobby. Additionally, a repair was done to the women’s 



bathroom toilet and the utility sink in the closet. We will be very shortly painting the 

bathrooms and the kitchen.    

Firehouse:  N/A 

American Legion: N/A.  

Equipment Repairs & Maintenance 

Public Works:      

#B1 LF tire- flat repair 

Construction Flat repair 

#L3 Hydraulic filter, Fuel filters, V-belt, adjust lower alternator bracket, Replace broken 
exhaust hanger, coolant recovery tank 
 

#47 Replace Right gutter broom, new temp sensor, New serp belt, new belt tensioner, 
Found 30amp main fuse in panel melted, Replace inner and outer air filters, Replace 
shut down sensor box 
#31 Clean distributor cap and rotor, Inspect plugs, Found plugs had some black on them, 
Clear CEL for rich code, Replace 3 O2 sensors 
 
 
#46 Flat repair 

Other minor repairs. 

Police: 

#5 Highway tire bead seal LF Tire, Water pump, Ribbed idler pulley, Serp belt, Belt tensioner. 

 
#6 Oil change, Replace upper radiator hose. 

 
#7 Oil change, Rotate tires, Coolant bottle replaced, Fix driver side windshield sprayer 

 
#8 Oil change, Add 1qt coolant,  Rear pads, Rear rotors 
 
#10 Water pump, Alternator, Serp belt, both idler pulleys, Tensioner 
 
 
 
#9-2 PM’d vehicle 



 
#3 Water pump, Thermostat, oil/ filter 

 

Other minor repairs 

Fire Dept.: 

N\A 

Recreation: 

John Deere Mower PM’d 

Personnel Training:   N/A 

 

Expenses:   

* For any services rendered, please also check the bill list accompanying the Committee 

agenda. Some costs for goods may be on a bill list subsequent to this report. 



MONTHLY REPORT

Westampton Township
Office of the Tax Collector

OCTOBER

Receipts Month-to-Date Year-to-Date
Current Year Taxes 4,524,916.95                   26,714,858.33              
Prior Year Delinquent Taxes 16,576.43                         176,914.46                    
Preliminary (2023) Year Taxes 52,235.84                         225,170.60                    
Interest on Taxes 5,702.75                            39,154.19                       
Arrears 1,575.84                            2,184.43                         
Special Charges -                                      900.00                            
Outside Lien Redemption 19,531.85                         81,409.93                       
Municipal Lien Redemption -                                      13,060.62                       
Tax Search Fees -                                      -                                   
Returned Check Fees 25.00                                  25.00                               

Sub Total: 4,620,564.66                 27,236,468.93            
Less NSF: (3,289.59)                          (32,664.93)                     
Total: 4,617,275.07                 27,895,289.24            

Grand Total: 5,298,650.36                 

Tax Sale:  SOS
     MUA 38,377.07                         
    Cost of Sale 3,661.80                            
              Total: 42,038.87                       

2023 Tax Sale:
     Taxes 32,337.29                         
     Interest & Penalty 6,184.95                            
     MUA 52,919.72                         
    Cost of Sale 5,894.46                            
    Premium 542,000.00                       
           Total: 639,336.42                     

Prepared by:  Kathy Merkh, Tax Collector



MONTHLY REPORT

Westampton Township
Office of the Tax Collector

NOVEMBER

Receipts Month-to-Date Year-to-Date
Current Year Taxes 2,978,222.57                   29,693,080.90              
Prior Year Delinquent Taxes 61.61                                  176,976.07                    
Preliminary (2023) Year Taxes 31,927.99                         257,098.59                    
Interest on Taxes 4,097.05                            43,251.24                       
Arrears -                                      2,184.43                         
Special Charges -                                      900.00                            
Outside Lien Redemption 14,659.46                         96,069.39                       
Municipal Lien Redemption -                                      13,060.62                       
Tax Search Fees -                                      -                                   
Returned Check Fees -                                      25.00                               

Sub Total: 3,028,968.68                 30,265,437.61            
Less NSF: (583.20)                             (33,248.13)                     
Total: 3,028,385.48                 30,923,674.72            

Prepared by:  Kathy Merkh, Tax Collector



MONTHLY REPORT

Westampton Township
Office of the Tax Collector

DECEMBER

Receipts Month-to-Date Year-to-Date
Current Year Taxes 137,651.85                       29,830,732.75              
Prior Year Delinquent Taxes 54.10                                  177,030.17                    
Preliminary (2023) Year Taxes 45,300.55                         302,399.14                    
Interest on Taxes 3,922.21                            47,173.45                       
Arrears -                                      2,184.43                         
Special Charges -                                      900.00                            
Outside Lien Redemption 9,610.45                            105,679.84                    
Municipal Lien Redemption -                                      13,060.62                       
Tax Search Fees 20.00                                  20.00                               
Returned Check Fees -                                      25.00                               

Sub Total: 196,559.16                     30,265,437.61            
Less NSF: (1,065.72)                          (34,313.85)                     
Total: 195,493.44                     31,119,168.16            

Prepared by:  Kathy Merkh, Tax Collector



MONTHLY REPORT

Westampton Township

Office of the Tax Collector

Jan-23

Receipts Month-to-Date Year-to-Date
Current Year Taxes 1,907,053.19                   1,907,053.19                    
Prior Year Delinquent Taxes 37,783.81                         37,783.81                          
Interest on Taxes 1,260.61                            1,260.61                            
Arrears -                                      -                                      
Outside Lien Redemption 4,956.22                            4,956.22                            
Municipal Lien Redemption -                                      -                                      
Tax Search Fees -                                      -                                      
Returned Check Fees -                                      -                                      

Sub Total: 1,951,053.83                 1,951,053.83                 
Less NSF: -                                      -                                      

Total: 1,951,053.83                 1,951,053.83                 

Prepared by:  Kathy Merkh, Tax Collector



MONTHLY REPORT

Westampton Township
Office of the Tax Collector

Feb-23

Receipts Month-to-Date Year-to-Date
Current Year Taxes 5,447,373.18                   7,354,426.37                 
Prior Year Delinquent Taxes 41,022.71                         78,806.52                       
Interest on Taxes 3,703.19                            4,963.80                         
Arrears 1,597.30                            1,597.30                         
Outside Lien Redemption 7,734.48                            12,690.70                       
Municipal Lien Redemption -                                      -                                   
PILOT 71,230.82                         
Tax Search Fees -                                      -                                   
Returned Check Fees -                                      -                                   

Sub Total: 5,572,661.68                 7,523,715.51              
Less NSF: (11,681.79)                        (11,681.79)                     
Total: 5,560,979.89                 7,512,033.72              

Prepared by:  Kathy Merkh, Tax Collector



 

 

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON  

AMENDING SECTION 232-10 HANDICAPPED PARKING 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2-2023 
 

 WHEREAS, the Township of Westampton believes that it is imperative that 

rules, regulations and procedures be established in order for residents of the Township to 

be able to apply for on-street handicapped parking spaces in front of their residences in 

residential zones; and 

 WHEREAS, the new owners of the properties located at 46 Country Lane and 

200 South Hill Drive have requested that the handicap parking in front of their residence 

be removed; and 

 WHEREAS, the Westampton Police Department has reviewed the requests, and 

determined that the handicap parking restrictions are no longer necessary, and further has 

requested a procedure be established for such requests in the future; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Township Committee of the 

Township of Westampton in the County of Burlington, State of New Jersey that the 

Westampton Township Code Section 232-10 Handicap Parking shall be amended to read 

as follows: 

§232-10 A. Requesting new on street resident handicapped parking space in 

residential zones: 

  (1)  All persons requesting a new on-street resident handicapped parking 

space must be residents of the Township of Westampton. 

  (2) All persons requesting a new on-street resident handicapped parking 

space must present proof that they have been issued a wheelchair symbol license plate or 

handicapped windshield placard by the New Jersey Division of Motor Vehicles. Said 

license plate and/or placard must be properly displayed in either the handicapped 

resident's vehicle or the vehicle that provides the primary transportation services for the 

resident. 

  (3) Written requests for a new on-street resident handicapped parking 

space should be submitted by way of letter to the Township’s Director of Public Safety 

and must include: 

   a. The full name and street address of the handicapped resident; 

and 



 

 

   b. A clear copy of the resident's valid handicapped identification 

card issued by the state with their handicapped license plate or placard; and 

   c. A clear copy of the resident's valid NJ Driver’s License or State-

issued photo ID; and 

   d. The address and proposed location at said address for the on-

street handicapped parking space; and 

   e. The license plate designation of the primary vehicle expected to 

utilize the new handicapped parking space. 

  (4) The Township’s Director of Public Safety or his designee shall review 

each written request for a new on-street resident handicapped parking space and may 

require submission of further documentation deemed necessary to properly assess the 

request. The Township’s Director of Public Safety shall also conduct an on-sight 

inspection at the proposed site for the new handicapped parking space to confirm that: 

   a. There is sufficient space adjacent to the handicapped person's 

residence for the proposed on-street resident handicapped parking space; and 

   b. The proposed handicapped parking space will not unreasonably 

interfere with the normal flow of traffic; and 

   c. The handicapped person's residence does not already provide 

available off-street parking. 

  (5) Should the Township’s Director of Public Safety recommend denial of 

a request for a new on-street resident handicapped parking space, the person requesting 

the new handicapped parking space may appeal the recommendation to the Township 

Committee by way of written request submitted to the Township Clerk within one month 

from the date of mailing of the Township’s Director of Public Safety's denial of their 

request. If no such written appeal is submitted to the Township Clerk, their request for 

the new on-street resident handicapped parking space will be deemed denied. 

  (6) Should the Township’s Director of Public Safety recommend approval 

of a request for a new on-street resident handicapped parking space or should his denial 

be properly appealed, the Township Committee shall review the recommendation or 

appeal. The Township Committee shall retain reasonable discretion to grant, deny or alter 

requests based upon the individual circumstances and needs at issue in each case. Absent 

exceptional circumstances, however, new on-street handicapped parking spaces should 

ordinarily be granted only when the request meets the requirements of this provision 

§232-10 and when the requested parking space can be placed fully within the property 

lines of the subject property. 

  (7) All new on-street resident handicapped parking spaces approved by the 

Township Committee shall be set by resolution of the Township Committee, designating 



 

 

the name of the subject street, the side of said street where the resident resides, and a 

description of the allowed parking area in front of the subject property. 

§232-10 B. Designated handicap parking. 

Pursuant to the authority granted to this municipality by N.J.S.A. 39:4-197, the following 

locations are hereby designated as restricted parking spaces for use by persons who have 

been issued special vehicle identification cards by the Division of Motor Vehicles.  

No other person shall be permitted to park in these spaces: 

Locations: 

120 Second - New homeowner, no handicapped control present 

184 South Hill - Original homeowner, still uses the handicapped parking space 

191 South Hill - Original homeowner, still uses the handicapped parking space 

204 South Hill - Original homeowner, still uses the handicapped parking space. 

Section Two.  All Ordinances and provisions thereof inconsistent with the provisions of 

this Ordinance shall be and are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency. 

Section Three.  If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause or provision of this 

ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, such adjudication shall apply only to the section, 

paragraph, subdivision, clause or provision and the remainder of this ordinance shall be 

deemed valid and effective. 

Section Four. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and 

publication according to law. 

Roll Call Vote -Upon Introduction – 3/7/2023 

Committee 

Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley   X    

Carr  X X    

Mayor Henley   X    

Mungo X  X    

Wright   X    

 

 

Roll Call Vote – Upon Adoption –  

Committee 

Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       

Carr       

Mayor Henley       

Mungo       

Wright       
 



 

 

Adopted upon final reading on 

 

 

________________________________ 

Mayor Sandy Henley 

 

 

  Attest 

 

________________________________ 

Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 



 

 

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON  

AMENDING CHAPTER 203 SOLICITORS AND CANVASSERS 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 3-2023 
 

 WHEREAS, the Township of Westampton has determined, declared and recited 

that the legitimate business or practice of soliciting and canvassing from door to door, 

regardless of purpose, affords a means for the criminal-minded to obtain admittance to 

private homes in furtherance of some present or future unlawful objective and an 

opportunity for the practice of fraud, deceit and dishonest dealing by the unscrupulous 

minority, with redress difficult because of lack of means of identifying the solicitor, and, 

consequently, public safety and welfare require that those going from door to door for 

any purpose be required first to give such information as will identify themselves and 

prevent possible abuse of the right by the criminally inclined; and 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 203, Section 4, Article B provides that the applicant shall, 

at the time of completing the written registration, deposit with the Township 

Clerk/Administrator for the use of the Township the sum of $5 to defray part of the cost 

to the Township of the registration and incidental cost of the investigation hereinafter 

referred to and of administration of this chapter; and 

 WHEREAS, the Township Committee has determined that it is in the best 

interest of the Township to raise the fee to $50.00 to offset the cost of the application 

process. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Township Committee of the 

Township of Westampton, Burlington County, State of New Jersey that Chapter 204, 

Section 4, Article B shall be amended to increase the application fee for a Solicitation 

permit from $5 to $50; and 

  

 

 



 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, The Township 

Committee hereby declares that all Ordinances and parts of Ordinances inconsistent with 

this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of said inconsistency. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect 

immediately upon final passage and publication as required by law. 

 

Roll Call Vote -Upon Introduction – 3/7/2023 

Committee 

Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley     X  

Carr X  X    

Mayor Henley   X    

Mungo  X X    

Wright   X    

 

 

 

Roll Call Vote – Upon Adoption –  

Committee 

Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       

Carr       

Mayor Henley       

Mungo       

Wright       

 
Adopted upon final reading on 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Mayor Sandy Henley 

 

 

Attest 

 

________________________________ 

Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

APPROVING PAYMENT OF VOUCHERS 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 3/21/2023 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 46-23 

 
 WHEREAS, the Township is in receipt of various vouchers submitted by vendors and/or 
other claimants for goods rendered and/or services provided to the Township; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer has certified that there exists a line-item 
appropriation against which each claim shall be charged and that there are sufficient funds 
available for the payment of each voucher; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each voucher contains a certification of a department head, or duly 
designated representative having personal knowledge of the facts that the goods have been 
provided or services rendered to the Township and that the goods or services are consistent with 
prior authorizations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a list of all conforming claims which have been approved by the Chief 
Financial Officer has been prepared and reviewed by the Township Committee and is appended 
hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
 NOW BE IT RESOLVED that the Committee for the Township of Westampton for the 
reasons set forth above hereby approves the payment of the vouchers set forth on the attached 
Exhibit A and this Resolution shall be recorded as part of the minutes of this meeting and shall 
upon approval be open to the public. 
 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, 
Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on March 21, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



































TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING COMPLIANCE WITH THE 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY COMMISION REQUIREMENTS 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 47-23 

 
 
 WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:4-5 as amended by P.L. 2017, c.183 requires the governing 
body of each municipality and county to certify that their local unit’s hiring practices comply 
with the United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission’s “Enforcement Guidance 
on the Consideration of Arrest and Conviction Records in Employment Decisions Under Title 
VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,” as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq., (April 25, 2012) 
before submitting its approved annual budget to the Division of Local Government Services in 
the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the members of the governing body have familiarized themselves with the 
contents of the above-referenced enforcement guidance and with their local unit’s hiring 
practices as they pertain to the consideration of an individual’s criminal history, as evidenced 
by the group affidavit form of the governing body attached hereto. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Township Committee of the 
Township of Westampton, hereby states that it has complied with N.J.S.A. 40A:4-5, as 
amended by P.L. 2017, c.183, by certifying that the local unit’s hiring practices comply with 
the above-referenced enforcement guidance and hereby directs the Clerk to cause to be 
maintained and available for inspection a certified copy of this resolution and the required 
affidavit to show evidence of said compliance. 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting held 
in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New Jersey 
08060 on March 21, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  
 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



1 
 

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
COUNTY OF BURLINGTON 

 
RESOLUTION TO UTILIZE AVERAGE TAX COLLECTION RATE 
FOR CALCULATION OF RESERVE FOR UNCOLLECTED TAXES 

APPROPRIATION IN THE 2023 MUNICIPAL BUDGET 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 48-23 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township of Westampton Township experienced a decline in the 
tax collection rate for the year 2022; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the use of the lower collection rate in arriving at the budget 
appropriation Reserve for Uncollected Taxes in the 2023 Municipal Budget would result 
in an unfair tax burden to the taxpayers of the Township of Westampton; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Division of Local Government Services, Department of 
Community Affairs will allow the Township of Westampton to use the average of the 
prior three years’ collection rates in calculating the budget appropriation Reserve for 
Uncollected Taxes in the 2023 Municipal Budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the prior three years’ collection rates were 99.06% for 2020, 99.11% 
for 2021 and 98.45% for 2022; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the averaging of the prior three years’ collection rates result in a 
collection rate of 98.87%; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Westampton may 
utilize a collection rate up to, but not to exceed, 98.87% in calculating the budget 
appropriation Reserve for Uncollected Taxes in the 2023 Municipal Budget. 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey 
at their meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas 
Road, Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on March 21, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting 
Township Clerk.  

 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 
 
      TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON  
 
      _____________________________ 
      SANDY HENLEY, MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________ 
WENDY GIBSON, ACTING TOWNSHIP CLERK 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 2023 MUNICIPAL BUDGET 
TO BE READ BY TITLE ONLY 

 
RESOLUTION 49-23 

 

 WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:4-8, as amended by L. 2015, C. 95, & 14, 2015 provides that 

the Municipal Budget may be read by title only at the time of the Public Hearing if a resolution is 

passed by not less than a majority of the full Governing Body, providing that at least one week 

prior to the date of the hearing, a complete copy of the Municipal Budget has been made available 

for public inspection, and has been made available to each person upon request; and, 

 WHEREAS, these conditions as it pertains to the 2023 Municipal Budget have been met. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Westampton Township Committee 

at its regular meeting held on March 21, 2023 at 7:00PM, that the Westampton Township 

Municipal Budget shall be read by title only. 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 

Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 

meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, 

New Jersey 08060 on March 21, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 

________________________________ 

Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 

 



1 
 

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION TO INTRODUCE THE 2023 MUNICIPAL BUDGET 
 

RESOLUTION 50-23 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the following statement of revenues and appropriations shall 

constitute the Local Municipal Budget for the year 2023; 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the said budget be published in the Burlington 

County Times edition of March 23, 2023 as follows: 

 

A hearing on the budget and tax resolution will be held at the Municipal Building on the 

18th day of April 2023 at 7:00 o’clock p.m., at which time and place objections to said budget and 

tax resolution of the Township of Westampton for the year 2023 may be presented by taxpayers 

or other interested persons. 

 
 
 Summary of General Section of Budget 
 Current Fund 
  
 Municipal Purposes within “CAPS” $11,469,496.69 
   
 Municipal Purposes excluded from “CAPS” 319,349.47 
 
 Reserve for Uncollected Taxes  485,325.08 
 
 Total General Appropriations  13,582,251.07 
 
 Less: Anticipated Revenues  4,994,690.78 
 
 Local Tax for Municipal Purposes  
 Amount to be Raised by Taxation   $8,587,560.29 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting held 

in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New Jersey 

08060 on March 21, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 
 

 
 
 

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
TRANSFER OF APPROPRIATION RESERVE FUNDS 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 51-23 

 
   
 WHEREAS, various 2022 bills have been presented for payment this year, which bills 
were not covered by order number and/or recorded at the time of transfers between the 2022 
Budget Appropriation Reserve in the last two months of 2022; and 

 
 WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:4-59 provides that all unexpended balances carried forward 
after the close of the year are available, until lapsed at the close of the succeeding year, to meet 
specific claims, commitments or contracts incurred during the preceding fiscal year, and allow 
transfers to be made from unexpended balances which are expected to be insufficient during the 
first three months of the succeeding year; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Committee desires to act favorably on the Chief  
Financial Officer's recommendation.   
   
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the   
Township of Westampton, in the County of Burlington and State of New Jersey, as follows:  
   

 1.  That the Township Committee hereby transfers certain amounts from the appropriations 
which reflect an excess to the appropriations which are insufficient to cover the operating 
needs of the Township in accordance with the attached Schedule "A".   

   
 2.  That the Township Committee hereby directs the Chief Financial Officer to adjust the  
 records accordingly.  

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting held 
in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New Jersey 
08060 on March 21, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



Schedule A 

 

Transfer as follows: 

 

From 2022 budget:   police salaries & wages $15,000.00 

 

Transfer to 2022 budget: 

Construction official-other expenses                       $    700.00 

Emergency Medical services-salaries & wages      $12,000.00 

Emergency Medical Services-other expenses        $ 2,300.00 

 



 
 
 

1 
 

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION REQUESTING A 2-MONTH EXTENSION OF TIME  
FOR AWARD OF A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE  

NJDOT FY2021 MUNICIPAL AID GRANT FUNDED PROJECT. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 52-23 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township of WESTAMPTON submitted Application MA-2021-Roberts 
Drive and Treetop Lane Improvements-00239 to the New Jersey Department of Transportation, 
Division of Local Aid and Economic Development (“NJDOT”) requesting $499,893.50 
for the resurfacing of Roberts Drive and Treetop Lane; 

 
 WHEREAS, the New Jersey Department of Transportation (NJDOT) awarded FY2021 
Municipal Aid grant funding in the amount of $176,000.00 for resurfacing of Roberts Drive and 
Treetop Lane; 
 
 WHEREAS, the deadline for award of a construction contract for the FY2021 Municipal 
Aid project was November 16, 2022; 

 
 WHEREAS, the Township of Westampton received bids on November 10, 2022 prior to 
the November 16, 2022 deadline to award the contract; 
 
 WHEREAS, the apparent low bidder (American Asphalt Company, Inc.) withdrew their 
bid on November 16, 2022; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Westampton Township Committee was awarded the construction 
contract to the next low bidder (Meco, Incorporated) at the Township Committee meeting held 
on December 20, 2022; 

 
 WHEREAS, additional time was needed for award of a construction contract for the 
above reasons;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Township Committee of the Township 
of Westampton, Burlington County, New Jersey, hereby requests a two (2) month extension of 
time to award a construction contract for the FY2021 funded project, or until January 16, 2023. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

2 
 

 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED on this 21st day of March 2023, by 

the Township Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New 
Jersey, that: 
 

1. The Township of Westampton hereby respectfully requests an extension of time 
for the FY2021 grant for the MA-2021-Roberts Drive and Treetop Lane 
Improvements-00239 project, so that the date by which the Project is to be 
awarded is extended until January 16, 2023. 

 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, 
New Jersey 08060 on March 21, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



1 
 

RESOLUTION No. 03/21/2023 
EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC FROM PUBLIC MEETING 

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 

WHEREAS, Section 7.a of Chapter 231 Public Law 1975, otherwise known as the “Open 
Public Meetings Act” states that except as provided by Section 7.b, all meetings of a public 
body, such as the Township Committee, shall be open to the public at all times; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 7.b provides that the Township Committee may exclude the public 

only from the portion of a meeting at which the Township Committee discusses certain subjects 
which are listed in said Section; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Township Committee desires to discuss certain subject(s) which are 

listed in said section and desires to exclude the public from the portion of the meeting at which 
the Township Committee will discuss said subject(s); and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 8 of Chapter 231, Public Law 1975 states that no public body shall 

exclude the public from any meeting to discuss any matter described in Section 7.b until the 
public body shall, at a meeting to which the public shall be admitted, first adopt a Resolution 
making certain statements with respect to the subject(s) to be discussed. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township of 

Westampton in the County of Burlington and State of New Jersey, as follows: 
 

1. That the Township hereby declares that the general nature of the subject(s) to be 
discussed by the Township Committee in closed session is as follows: 
 
a. Attorney Client Privilege – Personnel 

b. Potential Litigation  

That the Township Committee hereby declares that its discussion of the aforementioned 
subject(s) may be made public at a time when the Township Attorney advises the 
Township Committee that the disclosure of the discussion will not detrimentally affect any 
right, interest or duty of the Township or any other entity with respect to said discussion. 

 
2. That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons hereby declares that the 

public is excluded from the portion of the meeting during which the above discussion 
shall take place and hereby directs the Township Clerk to take the appropriate action to 
effectuate the terms of this Resolution. 



2 
 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 
of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 
held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 
Jersey 08060 on March 21, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk. 

 
 
 
 
 

Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 
 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 


	03.21.2023
	Construction Report 2.1.23 to 2.28.23
	Police- Monthly Report- February 2023
	PW Feburary 2023 council report
	Oct CR
	Nov CR
	Dec CR
	Tax Collector Jan Report
	Tax Collector Feb Report
	2-2023 Handicapped Parking Ordinance
	3-2023 Solicitors and Canvassers
	46-23 Payment of Vouchers 03.21.2023
	BILL LIST-MARCH 21 2023
	48-23 2023 Collection Rate Resolution
	RESOLUTION NO. 48-23

	49-23 Resolution Budget by Title 03.21.2023
	50-23 Resolution Budget Intro 03.21.23
	RESOLUTION TO INTRODUCE THE 2023 MUNICIPAL BUDGET
	Reserve for Uncollected Taxes  485,325.08
	Total General Appropriations  13,582,251.07


	51-23 Res Appropriation Reserve Transfer
	51-23 Res Appropriation Reserve Transfer SCHED A
	ADP9608.tmp
	RESOLUTION TO INTRODUCE THE 2023 MUNICIPAL BUDGET
	Reserve for Uncollected Taxes  485,325.08
	Total General Appropriations  13,582,251.07





